

Call Control Toolbar User Guide

BroadWorks[®] Assistant-Enterprise



Momentum Telecom Presents: BroadWorks[®] Assistant-Enterprise Call Control Guide

Copyright Notice

Copyright[©] 2013 BroadSoft, Inc.

All rights reserved.

Any technical documentation that is made available by BroadSoft, Inc. is proprietary and confidential and is considered the copyrighted work of BroadSoft, Inc.

This publication is for distribution under BroadSoft non-disclosure agreement only. No part of this publication may be duplicated without the express written permission of BroadSoft, Inc. 9737 Washingtonian Boulevard, Gaithersburg, MD 20878.

BroadSoft reserves the right to make changes without prior notice.

Trademarks

BroadWorks[®] and BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise[™], BroadWorks Call Center[™], BroadWorks Communicator[™], BroadWorks Receptionist[™], and BroadWorks Deployment Studio[™] are trademarks of BroadSoft, Inc.

Microsoft, MSN, Windows, and the Windows logo are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. Other product names mentioned in this document may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies and are hereby acknowledged.

This document is printed in the United States of America.

9737 Washingtonian Boulevard, Suite 350 Gaithersburg, MD 20878 Tel +1 301.977.9440

WWW.BROADSOFT.COM



Table of Contents

1 Introduction	6
1.1 About BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise	6
1.2 About This Guide	6
1.3 Accessing Assistant–Enterprise	6
1.4 First Time Login	7
1.5 Subsequent Access	11
2 Using Assistant	13
2.1 The Toolbar	13
2.2 Make a Call	17
3.2.1 Dial Number	17
3.2.2 Dial from Web Page	18
3.2.3 Dial from E-mail	18
3.2.4 Dial from Contact List	19
3.2.5 Dial from vCard	20
3.2.6 Dial from Personal Directory	21
3.2.7 Dial from Group Directory	21
3.2.8 Dial from Call History	22
3.2.9 Dial from Speed Dial Directory	22
3.2.10 Dial from Search	23
3.3 Receive Call	24
3.3.1 Answer Call	24
3.3.2 Blind Transfer	24
3.3.3 Consulted Transfer	25
3.3.4 Open URL	25
3.3.5 Save vCard	26
3.4 During a Call	26
3.4.1 Hold Call	26
3.4.2 Initiate Three-Way Conference	26
3.4.3 Initiate N-Way Conference	27
3.5 End a Call	27
3.6 Voice Mail	27
3.6.1 Transfer to Voice Mail	27
3.6.2 Check for New Voice Mail	28
3.6.3 Retrieve Voice Mail	28
3.7 Use Call History	28
3.7.1 View Call Logs	28
3.7.2 Delete Call Logs	29
3.8 Enable and Disable Anywhere Locations	29
3.9 Set CommPilot Express Profile	30
4 Options Dialog	31

4.1 General Page	31
4.1.1 Additional Steps for Double-byte Languages and Right-to-Left Languages	32
4.2 Account Page	33
4.2.1 Password Change Dialog	34
4.3 Connection Page	35
4.4 Dialing Rules Page	36
4.5 Outlook Integration Page	37
4.5.1 Contacts Page	38
4.6 Updates Page	39
4.7 LDAP Integration Page	40
4.7.1 Directory Page	41
4.8 Web Screen Pop Page	43
4.9 About Page	44
5 Services Dialog	45
5.1 Incoming Calls	45
5.1.1 Anonymous Call Rejection	45
5.1.2 Call Forwarding Always	46
5.1.3 Call Forwarding No Answer	47
5.1.4 Call Forwarding Busy	48
5.1.5 Do Not Disturb	49
5.1.6 External Calling Line ID Delivery	50
5.1.7 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery	51
5.1.8 Simultaneous Ringing	52
5.1.9 CommPilot Express	54
5.2 Outgoing Calls	59
5.2.1 Automatic Callback	59
5.2.2 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking	60
5.3 Call Control	61
5.3.1 Anywhere	61
5.3.2 Remote Office	63
5.3.3 Call Waiting	64
5.4 Messaging	65
5.4.1 Voice Messaging	65
6 Troubleshooting	66
6.1 Using Assistant with Microsoft Windows Service Pack 2 (SP2)	66
6.2 Assistant Not Visible in Outlook	67
6.3 Register Assistant within Outlook	68
6.4 I Have Not Been Licensed to Use Assistant	69
6.5 Assistant Not Visible in Internet Explorer	69
7 Known Issues	70
7.1 Outlook 2007 Limitation	
8 Annondix A - Interface for Pight to LeftLanguages	74
• Appendix A - Interface for Right-to-Left Languages	/ 1

8.1	RTL Toolbar Layout	. 71
8	3.1.1 RTL Toolbar in Internet Explorer	.71
8	3.1.2 RTL Toolbar in Firefox	.71
8	3.1.3 RTL Toolbar in Outlook	.71
8.2	RTL Options Dialog	.72
8.3	RTL Call History Page	.72
8.4	RTL Warnings and Error Messages	.73

1 Introduction

1.1 About BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise

BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise is a carrier-class, lightweight desktop communications management product for everyday users of Microsoft Outlook, Microsoft Internet Explorer, or Mozilla Firefox with the BroadSoft telephony softswitch platform.

With this product you can manage your incoming and outgoing messages, maintain up-todate connection information, and configure controls on your calls and voice mail.

1.2 About This Guide

This guide provides step-by-step procedures and reference information for BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise Release 17.0.

In this document, BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise is interchangeably referred to as BroadWorks Assistant and Assistant–Enterprise.

1.3 Accessing Assistant–Enterprise

BroadWorks Assistant is an add-in to Microsoft Internet Explorer, Outlook, and Mozilla Firefox, and provides new toolbars to access BroadWorks Service and Call Management features within your web browser and mail client.

When you open Internet Explorer, Outlook, or Firefox with Assistant you see the following toolbar. Most buttons are disabled until you log in.

NOTE: Only BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise is available for use with Microsoft Outlook.

🛈 🔅 🔯 Se	rvices 👔	2 (🗿 🛛 CommPilot - None	🔳 🚨 (3 🕝	Ĩ	🔏 🔏	Search	•	🕎 Assistant Enterprise 👻
Dial Number	- L II (🚆 🥐 Call Lines		-					

Figure 1 Assistant–Enterprise in Internet Explorer



Figure 2 Assistant–Enterprise in Mozilla Firefox



Figure 3 Assistant–Enterprise in Outlook

1.4 First Time Login

Logging in to Assistant identifies you to the servers that manage your phone services. This is so you can receive, initiate, and control calls directly from your computer.

When you log in for the first time, you need to configure your connection settings as described in the following steps. Once these settings are configured, you do not need to provide them again.

You can log in directly from the toolbar by clicking Login.

1) Click Login on the toolbar.

Assistant opens the Options dialog.

- 2) Click Account.
- 3) To configure your account settings, enter, in the provided fields, the user name and password provided by your administrator for your Assistant account.
- Check the Save Username and Save Password options if you want to avoid being prompted for this information next time you log in. Your password is encrypted for greater security.
- 5) Click Apply.

🔅 General	Account
Conner ^h n	Sign-In Information
 Connection Dialing Rules Outlook Integration Contacts LDAP Integration Directory Web Screen Pop Updates About 	Username Password Sign-In Options Save Username Save Password
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 4 Options Dialog – Accounts Page

- 6) Configure your server connection by clicking **Connection**.
- 7) Enter the server URL and port number in the fields provided. Consult your system administrator for the necessary values.
- 8) Click **Apply**.

😳 General	Connection
🔍 Account	Carries Connection Information
Connection	Service Connection Information
🔢 Dialing Ro	Host Address:
Outlook Integration	Used Date
Contacts	Host Port.
🚊 LDAP Integration	
i 📻 Directory	
Web Screen Pop	
S Updates	
about 🖉	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 5 Options Dialog – Connection Page

- 9) If you use a proxy server to access the internet, click **Updates**.
- 10) Enter the proxy server information in the fields provided. Consult your system administrator for the necessary values.
- 11) Click Apply.

🧕 🤤 General	Updates
🔩 Account	- Provin Service Information
🖤 Connection	Ploxy server momation
🔢 Dialing Rules	Use a proxy server to check for updates
Outlook Integration	
Contacts	
E LDAP Integration	
Directory	Server: Port: 80
🔜 Web Screen Pop	Heer ID: Password:
Updates	
Abour (^h)	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 6 Options Dialog – Update Page

NOTE: The proxy server is not used to connect to BroadWorks for telephony services; it is used only to silently check for available Assistant upgrades.

- 12) To configure your general settings, click General.
- 13) Check *Auto login on start-up* to have Assistant connect automatically to the BroadWorks server when you start Internet Explorer, Firefox, or Outlook.
- 14) Check the *Auto login when connected to network* to have Assistant connect automatically to the BroadWorks server when a network connection is available.
- 15) The *Language* drop-down list allows the option of changing the language from the default English (U.S.). The language options are:
 - English (U.S.)
 - French (France)
 - German (Germany)
 - Italian (Italy)
 - Spanish (Spain)
 - Spanish (CALA), for Central and Latin America
 - Simplified Chinese (PRC), for People's Republic of China
 - Any custom language the administrator hasspecified

If you selected a double-byte language such as Chinese, Japanese, or Korean or a right-to-left language such as Hebrew or Arabic, go to section *4.1.1 Additional Steps for Double-byte Languages and Right-to-Left Languages* before continuing.

After selecting the desired language, click **OK** and restart Assistant for the changes to take place.

16) *Synchronize language with service profile*, when checked, enables Assistant to automatically match the application language to the language set within the BroadWorks subscriber's profile after signing in.

NOTE: If no profile match is found, the language remains set to the current language.

17) Click OK.

 General Acco Connection Dialing Rules Outlook Integration Contacts LDAP Integration Directory Web Screen Pop Updates About 	General Options Auto login when connected to network Alerts Hide call notifications Language Language Synchronize language with service profile
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 7 Options Dialog - General Page

18) Click **Login** again. If Assistant is configured with password expiry option, you are presented with the Change Password dialogbox.

This is your first login attempt or your password has expired. You must change your password before proceeding.			
Old Password:			
New Password:			
Confirm New Password:			
OK	Cancel		

Figure 8 Change Password on First Login Dialog Box

19) Enter your old password, and your new password twice in the spaces provided.

If your configuration and credentials are correct, you are connected to the BroadWorks server and the buttons on your toolbar are enabled.

NOTE: The buttons are enabled if their respective services are assigned.

😳 🚯 🗑 Services 👷 🧭 CommPilot - None	🔹 🖧 👌 🖧 🥝 🛄 🔥 🔏 Search	Assistant Enterprise
-------------------------------------	------------------------	----------------------

Figure 9 Enabled Toolbar

1.5 Subsequent Access

Once you have configured BroadWorks Assistant with the settings it needs to connect to your service provider, you can be automatically logged in when you start Internet Explorer, Firefox, or Outlook without having to provide that information again. However if Assistant is configured with the Password Expiry option, you may be prompted to change your password upon log in. You can also access the *Password Change* dialog from the Options dialog. For more information, see section *4.2.1 Password Change Dialog.*

If your password has expired, the following dialog box appears, after you click Login.

This is your first login attempt or your password has expired. You must change your password before proceeding.				
Old Password:				
New Password:				
Confirm New Password:				
ОК	Cancel			

Figure 10 Login – Change Expired Password

If your password has not expired yet but will expire soon, the following dialog box appears:

This is your first login attempt or your password has expired. You must change your password before proceeding.				
Old Password:				
New Password:				
Confirm New Password:				
ОК	Cancel			

Figure 11 Login – Your Password Will Expire Soon

- 1) Enter your old password.
- 2) Enter your new password twice, to confirmit.
- 3) Click OK.
- 4) Or, if your password has not expired yet, click **Cancel** to cancel password change.

In both cases, you are logged into Assistant. If you have not changed your password, you are prompted to do so when you log in again.

NOTE 1: If your password has expired, the **Cancel** button is disabled forcing you to change your password before you are logged in to Assistant.

NOTE 2: All fields in the Password Change dialog box are mandatory.

2 Using Assistant

When you have successfully logged in to Assistant, most of the buttons on your toolbar are enabled.

2.1 The Toolbar

🗿 👯 🛐 Services 🛛 Anywhere 👻 👲 🧭 CommPilot - In Office	🔹 🖧 🙆 🥥 🗒 ሕ 🔏 Search	 Assistant Enterprise
Dial Contact 🔹 Dial Number 💿 👟 🛄 🍏 🔀 🆓 Call Lines		

Figure 12 Assistant–Enterprise Toolbar (Outlook)

Detailed Description of Buttons

Login: Logs in and out of Assistant. The color of this icon indicates your login status.

A grey icon indicates that you are not logged in. A green icon shows that you are currently logged in. A disabled button shows that Assistant is attempting to log in. A red button indicates that your last login attempt failed.



Figure 13 Login Button

Options: You can configure your BroadWorks account, connection settings, and dialing rules through this dialog. This icon is highlighted when open.



Figure 14 Options Button

Services: You can configure the Call Management services provided by Assistant. This icon is highlighted when in use.



Figure 15 Services Button

Portal Auto-Login: Logs you in to your web portal from Microsoft Internet Explorer or Mozilla Firefox.



Figure 16 Portal Auto-Login Button

Anywhere: Displays the list of all available BroadWorks Anywhere locations configured in the system and allows you to enable or disable BroadWorks Anywhere locations by clicking to the left of the location entries. An enabled location has a check mark beside it.

Anywhere 🔻

Figure 17 Anywhere Drop-down List



Figure 18 Anywhere Drop-down List Expanded Listing Available Locations

Remote Office: When activated, this service allows you to use an alternate phone, such as a mobile, home, or hotel phone, as your main business phone. When this service is enabled, the icon is highlighted.

If Remote Office is not yet configured when you use this icon, Assistant opens the *Services* dialog to the *Remote Office* page so you can configure the service.



Figure 19 Remote Office Button

Simultaneous Ringing: This allows you to set up a list of up to ten additional phone numbers that ring each time you receive a call. While the service is enabled, the icon remains highlighted.

If Simultaneous Ringing is not yet configured when you use this icon to activate the service, Assistant opens the *Service* dialog to the *Simultaneous Ringing* page for you to configure the service.



Figure 20 Simultaneous Ringing Button

Current CommPilot Profile sets the current CommPilot Express profile, which determines the way the system handles incoming calls. You can configure the settings for your CommPilot Express profiles in the *Services* dialog.

CommPilot - None	~
------------------	---

Figure 21 CommPilot Profile Drop-down List

Call Forward Always service automatically forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number. When this service is enabled, this icon remains highlighted.

If Call Forward Always is not yet configured when you use this icon to activate the service, Assistant opens the *Service* dialog to the *Call Forwarding Always* page for you to configure the service.



Figure 22 Call Forwarding Always Service Button

Call Forward No Answer service automatically forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number when you do not answer within a specified number of rings. While the service is enabled, the icon remains highlighted.

Ó

Figure 23 Call Forwarding No Answer Service Button

Call Forward Busy service forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number when you are busy on other calls. While the service is enabled, this icon remains highlighted.

If Call Forward Busy is not yet configured when you use this icon to activate the service, Assistant opens the *Services* dialog to the *Call Forwarding Busy* page for you to configure the service.

Δ

Figure 24 Call Forwarding Busy Service Button

Do Not Disturb service automatically forwards all incoming calls to your Voice Messaging service, or plays callers a busy tone if you do not have a Voice Messaging service configured. While the service is enabled, this icon remains highlighted.



Figure 25 Do Not Disturb Service Button

Speed Dial Directory allows you to dial phone numbers saved in your speed dial list by clicking them with your mouse.

W	

Figure 26 Speed Dial Directory Button

Call History lists your most recent received, missed, and dialed calls.



Figure 27 Call History Button

Personal Directory allows you to dial phone numbers saved in your personal directory by clicking them.



Figure 28 Personal Directory Button

Group Directory permits you to dial phone numbers in your group directory by clicking them.



Figure 29 Group Directory Button

Search hunts in the group, personal, Outlook Express, and Lightweight Directory Access Protocol (LDAP) directories for the text you enter. Note that the e-mail address is not returned for Outlook contacts.

	Search	<
--	--------	---

Figure 30 Search Button

Assistant–Enterprise drop-down list contains URLs preconfigured by your service provider administrator. Select an item from the list to navigate to that page in your web browser.



Figure 31 Assistant–Enterprise Drop-down List

Dial Contact dials the business, home, or mobile number of a selected contact within Microsoft Outlook.

Dial Contact •

Figure 32 Dial Contact Drop-down List

Dial Number dials a specified number.

Figure 33 Dial Number Combo Box

Answer answers an incoming call.



Figure 34 Answer Button

Hold puts the current call on hold.



Figure 35 Hold Button

Transfer to Voice Mail transfers the current call to your *Voice Messaging* service. If the color of the envelope icon on the *Transfer to Voice Mail* button changes, as illustrated in *Figure 37*, then a new voice mail is available.

-1
ė.

Figure 36 Transfer to Voice Mail Button



Figure 37 Transfer to Voice Mail Button with Voice Mail Waiting Indication

Blind Transfer transfers the current call to another phone number.



Figure 38 Blind Transfer Button

Conference Call starts a conference call that can include 3 to 32 callers. This button only becomes enabled when you are connected to two other parties at the same time.



Figure 39 Conference Call Button

End Call ends the current call.



Figure 40 End Call Button

Call Lines lists your phone numbers you are currently connected to.



Figure 41 Call Lines Drop-down List

2.2 Make a Call

3.2.1 Dial Number

To dial a new number:

- 1) Type the number in the *Dial Number* box.
- 2) To place the call, pressENTER.
- 3) To end the call, click **End**.



Figure 42 Dial Number Box

To redial a previously dialed number:

1) Select a number by clicking on the arrow at the right-hand side of the *Dial Number* box.

A list of up to 10 previously dialed numbers is displayed.

- 2) Click on a number in the *Dial Number* list.
- 3) To place the call, pressENTER.
- 4) To end the call, click **End**.



Figure 43 Redial Previous Number

3.2.2 Dial from Web Page

To dial from a web page:

- 1) Select the phone number displayed on a web page.
- 2) Highlight the number with your mouse.
- 3) Right-click the highlighted phone number and select *Dial* from the pop-up window.

Contact Us		
NORTH AMERICA		EUROPI
Gaithersburg, Ma Corporate Headq 220 Perry Parkwa Gaithersburg, MC Tel: 1301977-9 Sales Informatic Hotel Accommo Map Quest	ryland uarters y 20877 440 Cut Copy Pacte	Belfast Ireland EMEA H BroadS The Inn en's ast 1 Te
Montreal, Cana R & D Facility 7405 Transcana – Suite 201 Saint-Laurent, Gro Canada	Select All Print Print Preview	n, G es C tact +49

Figure 44 Dialing from Web Page

3.2.3 Dial from E-mail

NOTE: At the time this document was printed, this feature was only available in Outlook 2002, Outlook 2003, and Outlook 2013. This is, by design, a limitation of Outlook 2000, Outlook 2007, and Outlook 2010.

Make sure that the e-mail you wish to dial from is in the HTML format. To dial a contact from an outlook e-mail, follow these steps:

- 1) Open the e-mail that contains the phone number you wish to dial. Make sure it is either an open message or in the preview format.
- 2) Use your mouse to highlight the number you wish to dial.
- 3) Right-click the highlighted number. A drop-down list appears. Click on **Dial**. The phone call is now placed.



Figure 45 Right-click to Dial from E-mail

3.2.4 Dial from Contact List

With Assistant–Enterprise you can dial a home, business, or mobile number of any contact directly within Outlook.

NOTE: When you click a phone number for a contact in Internet Explorer 8, the following message can appear: "Do you want to allow this web site to open a program on your computer?" If you do not want to see this message again, uncheck the *Always ask before opening this type of address check box*.

- 1) Click Contact in the folder list.
- 2) Select the contact you wish to call from the contact list.
- 3) Click the arrow at the right-hand side of the *Dial Contact* drop-down list, on the Assistant toolbar within Outlook.
- 4) Select the type of number to call.



Figure 46 Dialing from Contact List

3.2.5 Dial from vCard

To dial from a vCard in Outlook 2000/2002/2003/2013:

- 1) Click *Contacts* in the folder list.
- 2) Double-click the contact you want to call. Outlook opens the contact's vCard.
- 3) Click the arrow at the right-hand side of the *Dial Contact* drop-down list, on the Assistant toolbar within Outlook.
- 4) Select the type of number tocall.

ł	<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	Insert	F <u>o</u> rma	at <u>T</u> ools	<u>A</u> cti	ons	<u>H</u> elp
1	Dial C	iontact '		🛃 <u>S</u> ave a	and Clo	se 🖬 🛛 🤅	3 (1	• 🛷 🖗
		Busine	55	+ 1	0 +	AB	Ι	U	= =
7		Home		Activ	ities	Cortificat		oll s	ielda
		Mobile		ACUV		Certificat	.65	MILL	
5	Ful	I <u>N</u> ame		HELF	PDESK				
	Jop	title:		IT					
	Com	pany:		Broa	idSoft				
	File	as:		HELF	DESK				

Figure 47 Dialing from vCard

To dial from a vCard in Outlook 2007:

- 1) Click Contacts in the folder list.
- 2) Double-click the contact you want to call. Outlook opens the contact's vCard.
- 3) Click the Telephony Toolbar tab.
- 4) Select the type of number to call.



Figure 48 Dialing from Outlook 2007 vCard

NOTE: If there is no number specified for a contact, but you click on the Home, Business, or Mobile buttons in your vCard ribbon, a message appears stating "No number is specified for this contact". This is, by design, a limitation of Microsoft Outlook 2007 API.

3.2.6 Dial from Personal Directory

You can directly dial any number stored in your personal directory as it is integrated with the contacts in Assistant.

1) To open the personal directory, click **Personal Directory** on the Assistant toolbar.

This page can be printed using the host application. Users with Microsoft Windows XP Service Pack 2 installed may encounter a warning when opening the Personal Directory. For more information, see section 6 *Troubleshooting*.

- 2) To sort the personal directory, click on a *column* header. The table is sorted, in descending order, according to the information in the column you selected.
- 3) To change the sort order between descending and ascending, click on the same *column* header again.
- 4) To dial a number from the personal directory, click on the desired phone number. Assistant places the call.

🛙 🗿 🗱 📝 Services 🛛 Anyv	vhere 🕶 👱 🧭 CommPilot - In Office	🝷 📩 🙆 🥝 🗒 🔏 🌇 Search	👻 Assistant Enterprise 👻 👳
Dial Contact 👻 Dial Number	🔹 📞 🛄 🍯 🔀 🎆 🌈 Call Lines	▼ 	
Contacts «	🚨 Telephony Toolbar - Broad	dWorks Assistant Enterprise -	Personal Directory
All Contact Items	🔒 Personal D	lirectory	2
My Contacts 🏾 🕆			
Se Contacts	Name / Email		
📓 Contacts in Personal Folde			
😼 Telephony Toolbar			



3.2.7 Dial from Group Directory

You can directly dial any number stored in your group directory that integrates the group contacts, provided by your service provider, with Assistant.

1) Click Group Directory on the Assistant toolbar.

This list can be printed using the host application. Users with Microsoft Windows XP Service Pack 2 installed may encounter a warning when opening the Group Directory. For more information, see section 6 *Troubleshooting*.

- 2) To sort the group directory, click on a *column* header. The table is sorted, in descending order, according to the information in the column you selected.
- 3) To change the sort order between descending and ascending, click on the same *column* header again.
- 4) To dial a number from the group directory, click on the desired phone number. Assistant places the call.

😳 😧 🎬 🔤 Services 🛛 Anyv	where 🕶 🛛 👲 🛛 🧭 🛛 CommPi	lot - In Office 🔹 🛃	👌 🥝 🗒 🔏 🔏	Search 🔹 Assistant E	interprise 👻 🥃
Dial Contact - Dial Number	- 📞 💷 🏹 🕷	🖥 🌈 Call Lines	• 👳		
Contacts «	😉 Telephony Too	olbar - BroadWorks	Assistant Enter	prise - Group Directory	1
All Contact Items		Group Directory			2
My Contacts 🏾 🕆					
See Contacts	Name	Number	Extension	Mobile	Department

Figure 50 Group Directory

3.2.8 Dial from Call History

Call History allows users to view their missed calls, received calls, and dialed calls. These are listed in reverse chronological order.

- 1) To open the Call History, click **Call History** on the toolbar.
- 2) To dial from the call history, click on the desired phone number. Assistant automatically places the call.

Service Al	swer) 👷 🧭 Call Lines	ice 💌 🖧 🙆 🤅) 🖺 🧥 🖺	Search 💌	Assistant Enterprise	7	
	Call History						Broadworks RSSISTRAT-EATERPRISE
							Clear All
	Select All Clear	Received Calls		Select All Clear	Dialed Calls		Select All Clear
anishas	2233	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		🗌 Unavailable	22222228	
00:21		2008-09-03, 14:25:58			2008-09-05, 18:34:52		
anishas	2233	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	2225	
52:20		2008-09-02, 17:29:26			2008-08-29, 11:59:33		
sagar1	2230	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	2225	
50:49		2008-09-02, 16:45:44			2008-08-29, 11:59:20		
sthi	22222250	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	22222229	
05:57		2008-09-02, 15:28:07			2008-08-29, 11:58:10		
	2229		2229			2224	

Figure 51 Call History

3.2.9 Dial from Speed Dial Directory

You can dial from the speed dial directory.

- 1) To open the Speed Dial Directory, click **Speed Dial Directory** on the Assistant toolbar.
- 2) To dial from the speed dial directory, click the desired phone number and Assistant places the call.

🚺 🚺 🎲 🐨 Services 🛛 Anyv	vhere 🕶 👷 🧭 CommPilot - In Office	🔹 🖧 🙆 🎯 🗒 🔏 Kearch	🔹 Assistant Enterprise 🕶 🖕
Dial Contact 👻 Dial Number	🝷 📞 💷 🏹 📉 🍈 🥜 Call Line	s 🗸 🗸	
Contacts «	Telephony Toolbar - Bro	adWorks Assistant Enterprise - Sp	eed Dial Directory
All Contact Items	🕜 Speed Di	al Directory	<u>s</u>
My Contacts 🕆			
Sea Contacts	Key	lumber	Description

Figure 52 Speed Dial Directory

3.2.10 Dial from Search

Use the *Search* drop-down list to search for a user or contact. The search results include all users in the Group, Personal, Outlook Express, and LDAP directories, if configured to do this. Your search returns all users that match your criteria in any field. For example, if you enter "sa" as your criteria, your search might return users with the first name "Sally" or with the last name "Sanders" as well as users in the department "sales".

You can also search for users by phone number.

To search for a user:

- 1) Type your criteria in the *Search* box.
- 2) Press ENTER to execute the search.

Assistant displays the results of your search.

- 3) Click the phone number you want to dial.
- 4) To end the call, click **End**.

! 🔘 🗱 🗽 Services Anyv	vhere 🕶 🛛 🙍 🛛 🧭 🖉 CommPilo	t - In Office	- 👌 👌 🕻	🧼 🗒 🔏 🔏	Search	 Assistant E 	Enterprise 🕶 💂
Dial Contact 👻 Dial Number	- 📞 💵 🍯 🖂 🏶	🌈 Call Lines		• =			
Contacts «	😉 Telephony Too	lbar - Broad	Works Assi	istant Ente	rprise - Sea	rch Results	
All Contact Items	Q	Search resu	lts:				
My Contacts 🌼							
S Contacts	Name	Business	Extension M	lobile	Home	Number	Email

Figure 53 Search Bar

To re-execute a previous search:

1) Select a previous search criteria by clicking on the arrow at the right-hand side of the *Search* box.

A list of previous search criteria is displayed.

2) Select an item in the list.

Assistant displays the results of your search.

- 3) Click the phone number you want to dial.
- 4) To end the call, click **End**.

🖧 🙆 🥥 🗒 🔥	Search 👻	Assistant Enterprise 🔻 🖕
	helpdesk	

Figure 54 Search Bar History

3.3 Receive Call

3.3.1 Answer Call

NOTE: You can only answer a call via Assistant if you have an Advanced Call Control (ACC) compliant phone.

When you receive a call, Assistant displays a call notification window on top of the system tray. You can answer this call by picking up your handset from the Assistant toolbar or by clicking the call notification (only if you have an Advanced Call Control [ACC] compliant phone).

- To answer a call from Assistant toolbar, click **Answer**.
- To answer a call from the call notification, click on it.

When using Assistant–Enterprise with Outlook, if the incoming call does not provide a name for the calling party, Assistant checks the number against your Outlook contacts and displays the corresponding name if it finds a match.

You can also transfer the caller to your Voice Mail, save a vCard for the caller, open a URL populated with the caller's number, or end the call directly from the call notification.

3.3.1.1 Call Notification

When you initiate or receive a call, Assistant displays a notification window above the system tray, which includes the other party's phone number and other information about the call. Clicking the hyperlinked text in the call notification automatically answers the call.

The call notification stays open for the duration of the alerting call.

If you initiate or receive another call while the first notification is open, the call notifications stack on top of one another.

1	 8	\$	×
		Incoming Call: Board Room	
	վհ	0208	
		-	

Figure 55 Call Notification

3.3.2 Blind Transfer

Use this method to transfer a call to another specified number without providing an introduction to the destination party.

Calls may be transferred this way while active, held, or ringing on your phone. In the latter case, the system redirects the call before it is answered.

1) If the first party is not already on the line, dial a number on your phone or select a number using any of the methods described in section 3.2 *Make a Call.*

- 2) Call the second number. This automatically puts the first party on hold if the first party is not already on hold.
- 3) Initiate the transfer by clicking Transfer on the toolbar. The parties are now connected.



Figure 56 Transfer Button

3.3.3 Consulted Transfer

Use this method to transfer a call to another specified number and (optionally) provide an introduction to the destination party. Calls may be transferred this way while active, held, or ringing on your phone.

When a supervised transfer is initiated, the primary call is placed on hold and a call is made to the party intended to receive the call. The receiving party may be consulted prior to accepting the call.

- 1) If the first party is not already on the line, dial a number on your phone or select a number using any of the methods described in section 3.2 *Make a Call.*
- 2) Call the second number. This puts the first party on hold.

If you are using a Polycom phone, *Auto Answer on local alerting* must be set to true to put the first party on hold and automatically answer the second call. Otherwise, you have to answer the second call from the device or client.

3) Wait until the called party accepts your call, and then click **Transfer** to connect the parties.

3.3.4 Open URL

When you receive a call, Assistant displays a call notification window on top of the system tray.

To open a URL in your browser, click Web Pop URL in the call notification.

This opens a page in your browser window that contains information about the calling party encoded in its URL.

a 🔜	8= 🌈	×
	<u>Incoming Call:</u> <u>Shambhu Kumar</u> <u>5010</u>	

Figure 57 Opening URL through Call Notification

You can also transfer the caller to your Voice Mail, save a vCard for the caller, open a URL populated with the caller's number, or end the call directly from the call notification.

3.3.5 Save vCard

When you receive a call, Assistant displays a call notification window on top of the system tray.

You can click a button in this notification to save the caller's phone number and personal information as a vCard in Outlook. To do this, click **Add vCard** in the call notification.

a 🔜	s= <i>(</i> ?	×
	Incoming Call: Shambhu Kumar <u>5010</u>	

You can also transfer the caller to your Voice Mail, save a vCard for the caller, open a URL populated with the caller's number, or end the call directly from the call notification.

3.4 During a Call

3.4.1 Hold Call

- 1) To hold a call, click **Hold** on the toolbar. The Hold button is grayed out to indicate the held status of the call.
- 2) To resume a held call, click **Answer** (highlighted) on the toolbar. The hold returns to its normal state to indicate the active status of the call.



Figure 59 Hold Button

3.4.2 Initiate Three-Way Conference

NOTE: You must have the Three-Way Call service assigned to you to use this feature.

You can initiate a conference with two other parties directly from the toolbar. To establish two simultaneous active calls, you must have only two phone numbers listed in the *Call Lines* drop-down list. These calls may have been initiated either by you or by the other parties.

- 1) To start the conference, click **Three-Way Conference** on the toolbar.
- 2) To drop only one participant from the conference, select the participant's number from the *Call Lines* drop-down list and click **End**.

Figure 58 Saving vCard through Call Notification

3.4.3 Initiate N-Way Conference

NOTE: You must have the N-Way Call service assigned to you to use this feature.

You can initiate a conference with two or more parties. The maximum number of parties allowed in the conference call is controlled by your service provider for which the range is 4 through 15 participants. You must have at least two phone numbers listed in the *Call Lines* drop-down list. All calls on the list are added to the conference. These calls can be initiated either by you or by the other parties.

- 1) To start the conference, click **N-Way Conference** on the toolbar.
- 2) To add new incoming or outgoing calls to the conference, click **N-Way Conference** on the toolbar.
- 3) To drop only one participant from the conference, select the participant's number from the *Call Lines* drop-down list and click **End**.

3.5 End a Call

You can end both incoming and outgoing calls directly from the toolbar and from the call notification window.

- To end a call from the toolbar, click **End** on the toolbar.
- To end a call from the call notification, click End Call.



Figure 60 Ending Call through Call Notification

NOTE: When you end an incoming call before the call has been answered, the caller continues to hear the ringing tone until the caller hangs up.

3.6 Voice Mail

3.6.1 Transfer to Voice Mail

You can transfer calls to your Voice Mail from the toolbar and from the call notification window.

To transfer a call to Voice Mail from the Assistant toolbar, click **Transfer to Voice Mail** on the toolbar.

1

Figure 61 Transfer to Voice Mail Button

To transfer a call to Voice Mail from the call notification, click the **Transfer to Voice Mail** icon in the notification window.

3.6.2 Check for New Voice Mail

If the color of the envelope icon on the **Transfer to Voice Mail** button changes, then a new voice mail is available. Otherwise the envelope is grayed out.

0

Figure 62 Transfer to Voice Mail Button Indicating New Voice Mail

3.6.3 Retrieve Voice Mail

Make sure that you are not currently engaged in a call. No entries must be present on the *Call Lines* drop-down list.

Transfer yourself to your Voice Mail by clicking the **Transfer to Voice Mail** button on the toolbar.

3.7 Use Call History

You can view and delete old call logs using the Call History feature. You can also make calls from Call History. Viewing and deleting call logs is described in the remainder of this section. For more information about making calls, see section 3.2.8 *Dial from Call History*.

3.7.1 View Call Logs

To view call logs, click Call History on the toolbar.

			ς.	
			L	
	-	-	L	
	-	-		
_	_		_	

Figure 63 Call History Button

The *Call History* window appears where you can view your dialed, received, and missed calls.

•	🛦 📕 🛋 🕅 🗮 🌈 Call Lines	×					
j Service <mark>A</mark>	nswer) 👲 🥝 CommPilot - In Off	ice 🔽 💪 🙆 🧯) 🖹 🧥 🖺	Search 🔽	Assistant Enterprise	7	
	Call History						Broadworks RSSISTANT-ENTERPRISE
U 7							Clear All
	Select All Clear	Received Calls		Select All Clear	Dialed Calls		Select All Clear
anishas	2233	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	2222228	
00:21		2008-09-03, 14:25:58			2008-09-05, 18:34:52		
anishas	2233	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	2225	
52:20		2008-09-02, 17:29:26			2008-08-29, 11:59:33		
sagar1	2230	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	2225	
50:49		2008-09-02, 16:45:44			2008-08-29, 11:59:20		
sthi	22222250	🔲 msagar msagar	2229		Unavailable	22222229	
05:57		2008-09-02, 15:28:07			2008-08-29, 11:58:10		
	2220		2220			2224	

Figure 64 Viewing Call History

3.7.2 Delete Call Logs

To delete selected call logs:

- Select the calls you want to clear, by checking the corresponding check boxes. Alternatively, to select all calls in a specific call log (Dialed Call, Received Calls, or Missed Calls), click the corresponding Select All button.
- 2) Click the corresponding **Clear** button.

To clear all call logs in all log categories:

Click Clear All, at the top-right of the Call History window.

If an error occurs when deleting a call log, perform the following steps:

- 1) Start Internet Explorer.
- 2) From the menu bar, select *Tools* and then *Internet Options*. The *Internet Options* dialog box appears.
- 3) Click the **Security** tab and then click the **Custom level...** button.
- 4) In the Security Settings Internet Zone dialog box, scroll down to ActiveX controls and plug-ins and check Enable.
- 5) Click **OK** to save yourchanges.

NOTE 1: When you select **Clear** or **Clear All**, a warning message appears. When you click **OK**, the delete request is executed. When you click **Cancel**, it ignores the request. (However, this warning message may differ, depending on how it was configured by your system administrator.)

NOTE 2: You need to refresh the *Call Log History* to view the changes.

3.8 Enable and Disable Anywhere Locations

You use the *Anywhere* menu item on the Telephony toolbar to enable or disable Anywhere locations.

This drop-down menu shows the list of all available locations configured in the system.

An item in the menu shows the phone number, the description, and the enabled/disabled state of that location. If the location is enabled, it is checked.

- 1) To enable a location, click to the left of that location. A check mark appears next to the location.
- 2) To disable a location, click the check mark next to it.

Dial Number 🛛 🔽 📞 📕 👔	🖬 🙀 🥐 Call Lines 🔍
🕚 🔅 🖅 Services 👔	enywhere 👻 🔮 🧭 CommPilot - None 💌 🖧 💩 🥥 🖺 ሕ 🦓 Search 💌 🖅 Assistant Enterprise 🐱
Action cancele	✓ 1111111 Johan 1112291 Thomas ✓ 44145555 Navanit

Figure 65 Assistant–Enterprise Toolbar – Anywhere Locations

3.9 Set CommPilot Express Profile

NOTE: When using CommPilot Express, you should not enable other services such as Call Notify, Call Forwarding, or Simultaneous Ringing.

Your CommPilot Express profile allows you to manage your personal services using four configurable profiles. These profiles control your incoming calls automatically. Even when offsite, you can still manage your active profile on the web or over the phone.

With CommPilot Express, you can manage your calls based on your schedule. This allows you to work efficiently without unnecessary interruption.

You can quickly set your CommPilot Express profile using the CommPilot button on the Telephony toolbar.

- 1) To set the active CommPilot Express profile, select a profile from the *CommPilot* dropdown list on the toolbar.
- 2) To disable all profiles, select CommPilot None.

🔘 👯 🗑 Services 🛛 Anyv	vhere 🕶 🛛 👲 🛛 🧭 🗠 Co	mmPilot - In Office 🛛 🔻	👌 👌 🥝 🗒 🦓
Dial Contact 👻 Dial Number	- S	mmPilot - None mmPilot - In Office	
Mail «	🔄 Inbox 🖸	mmPilot - Out of Office mmPilot - Busy	
Favorite Folders 🛛 🕹	⊠.!亞门@From	mmPilot - Unavaliable	Subject

Figure 66 CommPilot Profiles

You can also set the active CommPilot Express profile on the *CommPilot Express* page of the *Services* dialog. The *Services* dialog for Assistant–Enterprise allows you to configure the settings that apply to each of your CommPilot profiles.

30

4 **Options Dialog**

The *Options* dialog allows you to configure the connection and account settings that Assistant uses to communicate with your service provider. The left-hand side of the dialog contains a tree view, listing the configuration pages you can access. The configuration pages you select in the tree view are displayed on the right.

- 1) Click **OK** to save all changes and close the dialog.
- 2) Click **Apply** to save all changes without closing the dialog. Cancel closes the dialog without saving your changes.

4.1 General Page

The *General* page allows you to configure the automatic login behavior of Assistant.

 General Acco Acco Dialing Rules Outlook Integration Contacts LDAP Integration Directory Web Screen Pop Updates About 	General General Options Auto login when connected to network Alerts Hide call notifications Language Language Synchronize language with service profile
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 67 Options Dialog – General Page

- Auto login when connected to network automatically logs in to your service provider when it detects an active network connecting on your computer.
- Hide Call Notification disables the call notification window. When this box is checked, the call notification does not appear when Assistant detects an incoming or outgoing call.

The Language options are as follows:

- The Language drop-down list allows the option of changing the language from the default English (U.S.). The language options are:
 - English (U.S.)

- French (France)
- German (Germany)
- Italian (Italy)
- Spanish (Spain)
- Spanish (CALA), for Central and Latin America
- Simplified Chinese (PRC), for People's Republic of China
- Any custom language the administrator has specified

If you selected a double-byte language such as Chinese, Japanese, or Korean or a right-to-left language such as Hebrew or Arabic, follow the *Additional Steps for Double-byte Languages and Right-to-Left Languages* in the following steps.

After selecting the desired language, click **OK** and restart Assistant for the changes to take place.

 Synchronize language with service profile, when checked, enables Assistant to automatically match the application language to the language set within the BroadWorks subscriber's profile after signing in.

NOTE: If no profile match is found, the language remains set to the current language.

4.1.1 Additional Steps for Double-byte Languages and Right-to-Left Languages

For BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise to support double-byte languages including East Asian locales such as Chinese, Japanese, Korean (CJK) or right-to-left (RTL) custom languages, such as Hebrew or Arabic, additional steps must be followed to change your Windows XP/Vista *Regional and Language Options*.

To enable support for a double-byte or RTL language in Assistant, use the following procedure:

- 1) Make sure the language within Assistant is set to the desired double-byte language for example, Chinese Simplified (PRC), or RTL language, for example, Hebrew.
- 2) You are prompted to restart the application for the changes to take effect; however do not restart until you complete the additional steps that follow.
- 3) Click the Microsoft Windows Start menu button.
- 4) Click the **Control Panel** menuitem.
- 5) Within the *Control Panel* open the *Regional and Language Options* settings.
- 6) Select the Advanced tab.
- 7) Modify the Language for non-Unicode programs to match the desired language.

NOTE: All double-byte languages such as Chinese, Japanese, and Korean and right-to-left languages such as Hebrew or Arabic must change the *Language for non-Unicode programs* value. However, most Latin script-based languages such as English, French, German, Italian, and Spanish function without modification to this value.

- 8) Click **OK** or **Apply** to save the changes
- 9) You may be prompted to restart. Close all open applications and restart Windows for the settings to take effect.

When the Windows XP/Vista operating system has been rebooted, you can launch BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise, and the double-byte or right-to-left language is displayed correctly.

NOTE: For an overview of the Assistant–Enterprise user interface for RTL languages, see *Appendix A – Interface for Right-to-Left Languages*.

4.2 Account Page

The *Account* page allows you to specify your BroadWorks user name and password. You can also change your password, if permitted to do so by your system administrator.

😳 General	Account		
🔍 Account			
Connection	Sign-In Information		
💮 Dialing Rules	Username	virajitha]
🗿 Outlook Integration		skokokokokokok	1
Contacts	Password		
📃 LDAP Integration			
Directory			
web Screen Pop	Sian-In Options		
S Updates			
About	Save Username		
-	Save Password		
	Chapao Bacquord	3	
	Change Passworu	<u>.</u>	
		ancel Apply	Help
		C PPPU	

Figure 68 Options Dialog – Account Page

Contact your service provider or system administrator if you do not know the appropriate settings. Once you successfully log in, the controls on this page become inactive.

- Save Username determines whether Assistant saves the user name you provide. Check this box to avoid having to specify your user name each time you log in to the program.
- Save Password determines whether Assistant saves the password you provide above. Check this box to avoid having to specify your password each time you log in to Assistant.

Assistant encrypts your password for greater security.

4.2.1 Password Change Dialog

Click **Change Password** on the *Options Dialog – Account* page to display the *Password Change* dialog.

Old Password:	
New Password:	
Confirm New Password:	
ОК	Cancel

Figure 69 Options Dialog – Password Change

To change your password:

- On the toolbar, click **Options**.
 Assistant opens the *Options* dialog.
- 2) Click Accounts.
- On the Account page, click Change Password. The *Password Change* dialog box appears.
- 4) In the text boxes, enter your old password and then your new password twice.
- 5) Click OK.

To cancel you changes, click Cancel.

NOTE: All fields in the Password Change dialog box are mandatory.

4.3 Connection Page

The *Connection* page allows you to specify the network address of the BroadWorks server that Assistant connects to.

🧐 General	Connection
Account	Consider Constanting Information
Connection	Service Connection Information
💮 Dialing R(^{Fr})	Host Address:
Outlook Integration	
Contacts	Host Port:
10 LDAP Integration	
Directory	
web Screen Pop	
💽 Updates	
🛐 About	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 70 Options Dialog – Connections Page

Contact your service provider or system administrator if you do not know the appropriate settings. Once you successfully log in, the controls on this page become inactive.

- Host Address specifies the URL or IP address which Assistant attempts to connect to when logging in.
- Host Port is the port number used by the BroadWorks server on the host specified above.

4.4 Dialing Rules Page

The Dialing Rules page allows you to configure special dialing rules for Assistant.

General	Dialing Rules
Account Connection Dialing Rules O Dutlook Inte Dutlook Inte Ling Contacts	Prefix Dialing To access an outside line for calls, dial:
I	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 71 Options Dialog – Dialing Rules Page

*To access an outside line for calls, dial s*pecifies a prefix number that Assistant includes automatically when dialing external numbers.

If entered, this number is pre-pended only to dialed numbers that contain more than six digits. Up to five digits may be entered in this field.

Valid characters are the numbers 0 to 9 and the symbol "+". If you include the "+" character, it must be the first character in the field.
4.5 Outlook Integration Page

The *Outlook Integration* page enables and disables the use of Assistant–Enterprise with Microsoft Outlook. As of Outlook 2007 you are unable to dial a contact in your in box using the right click-to-dial function.

😳 General	Outlook Integration
🔍 Account	
🐺 Connection	Outlook Integration
🔢 Dialing Rules	Enable Outlook Integration
Outlook Integration	
Contacts (^h)	
EDAP Integration	
Directory	
web Screen Pop	
Opdates	
About	
-	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 72 Options Dialog – Outlook Integration Page

The *Enable Outlook Integration* check box, when checked, makes sure that the Outlook integration features are activated.

4.5.1 Contacts Page

The *Contacts* page allows you to configure the way Assistant integrates with your Outlook contact list.

😳 General	Contacts
🔩 Account	Contract Patriaual
🤠 Connection	
🔢 Dialing Rules	 Retrieve contacts from default contact folder only
🗿 Outlook Integration	Betrieve all contacts
Contacts	
📺 LDAP Integ(⁶))n	Contact Lookup
	Use Outlook contacts as preferred CLID lookup for incoming calls
🔜 Web Screen Pop	
💽 Updates	
🔄 About	
L	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 73 Options Dialog – Contacts Page

- The Retrieve contacts from default contact folder only option searches for and retrieves contacts stored in the default Contacts folder within Outlook.
- The *Retrieve all contacts* option searches for and retrieves contacts stored in any Outlook folder.
- Use Outlook contacts as preferred CLID lookup for incoming calls determines whether Assistant uses the information saved in your Outlook contact list when displaying information about callers, instead of using group settings or other calling line ID information.

4.6 Updates Page

The *Updates* page allows you to configure a web proxy server for Assistant to use when connecting to the Internet.

😳 General	Updates
 Lieneral Account Connection Dialing Rules Outlook Integration Contacts LDAP Integration Directory Web Screen Pop Updates About 	Proxy Server Information Image: Use a proxy server to check for updates Type: HTTP Server: Port: User ID: Password:
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 74 Options Dialog – Update Page

Assistant uses this proxy only when checking for product updates, not when connecting to the BroadWorks server to provide Call Management features.

Contact your service provider or system administrator if you do not know the appropriate settings.

Use a proxy server to check for updates specifies whether a proxy server is required for Assistant to access the internet. When this box is checked, the other settings on this page become enabled.

- *Type* specifies the connection protocol used by the proxy server. The valid option is HTTP.
- Server specifies the URL of the proxy server.
- Port specifies the port number used by the proxy server. The default port of the HTTP protocol is 80.
- User ID specifies a user ID authorized to use the proxy.
- Password corresponds with the user ID mentioned above.

4.7 LDAP Integration Page

The *LDAP Integration* page allows you to configure the settings Assistant uses to connect to the LDAP directory server.

NOTE: Make sure you have correctly installed a valid certificate in both the Current User and Local Machine Window certificate stores before attempting to connect with SSL option.

General Carl Account Connection	LDAP Integration
Outlook Integration Outlook Outlook Integration Outlook O	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 75 Options Dialog – LDAP Integration Page

Contact your service provider or system administrator if you do not know the appropriate settings.

Enable LDAP Integration determines whether Assistant provides LDAP directory lookup services. Checking this box enables the controls on the *Directory* page.

4.7.1 Directory Page

The *Directory* page allows you to provide the configuration settings required for Assistant to connect to your directory server.

🙆 General	Directory			
🔩 Account	- LDAP Directory Infor	nation		
Connection				
🧱 Dialing Rules	Directory Address:	Idap.acme.org		Port: 389
Outlook Integration	Search Base:	CN=users,DC=acme,DC=	=org	🗹 Recursive
Contacts		Use SSL		
LDAP Integration		Requires Authentication	n	
Directory				_
Web Screen Pop	Authenticated [DN:		
Updates	Authenticated Passw	ord:		7
W About				
	Search Filter:	(cn=*SEARCH_TEXT	_*)	
	Retrieved attributes:	Remote name	Local na	me 🔼
		telephoneNumber	Business	Phone
		homePhone	HomePho	one
		mail	EMailAdd	ress
		cn	FullName	~
			_	
	ОК	Cancel Apply		Help

Figure 76 Options Dialog - LDAP Integration - Directory Page

Once you successfully log in, the controls on this page become inactive.

- Directory Address specifies the network address of the LDAP directory server.
- Port the port number for the LDAP server. This is compulsory and can be obtained from your system administrator.
- Search Base determines the location in the directory server tree that Assistant looks in when executing a search.
- Recursive, when checked, searches all sub-trees within the search base until the specifications are found.
- Use SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) determines whether Assistant uses SSL to connect to the directory server. Note that enabling SSL may require the use of a different port.
- Requires Authentication indicates whether Assistant must provide a user name and password to the directory server to conduct searches.
- Authenticated DN is the user name Assistant uses when connecting to the directory server when Requires Authentication is checked.
- Authenticated Password corresponds to the Authentication DN.

- Search Filter specifies an additional search filter to apply to all directory searches. For example, to include the search criteria in the filter you must include (cn=*_SEARCH_TEXT_*). Alternatively in another example, "(telephoneNumber=*)" restricts search results to users who have a telephone number assigned.
- Retrieved attributes is a table that controls the way that Assistant maps attributes returned from the directory server to columns displayed in the list of search results.

In each row of the table, enter an *LDAP* attribute in the *Remote Name* column. In the *Local Name* column, enter a corresponding local attribute. Typical Remote Name values are "cn", "sn", "telephoneNumber", "mobile", "homePhone", and "mail".

4.8 Web Screen Pop Page

The *Web Screen Pop* page allows you to configure a web page that you can open from the call notification window.

😳 General	Web Screen Pop
🔍 Account	
🐺 Connection	Web Screen Pop Information
💮 Dialing Rules	Web Screen Pop URL:
Outlook Integration	
Contacts	
📺 LDAP Integration	
Directory	
Web Screen Pop	
Updates (h)	
Mout	
-	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 77 Options Dialog - Web Screen Pop Page

The *Web Screen Pop URL* determines the URL that Assistant opens using the default browser when you click **Web Screen Pop** in the Call Notification pop-up window. In addition to the URL, there are a number of optional parameters that the client can pass to the browser. The following list summarizes these parameters:

- __USER : The user's BroadWorks ID. (Note that in this case the "user" is the BroadWorks subscriber.)
- ____FIRST : The first name of the user.
- __LAST : The last name of the user.
- ___EMAIL : The e-mail address of the user.
- __GROUP : The name of the BroadWorks group the user belongs to.
- __SERVICE_PROVIDER : The name of the BroadWorks service provider the user belongs to.
- ___PHONE : The phone number of the user.
- REMOTE_PHONE : The phone number of the remote party.
- REMOTE_NAME : The name of the remote party (when available).
- CALL_TYPE : "Incoming" or "Outgoing".

4.9 About Page

The *About* page displays the version, copyright notices, and product disclaimers associated with Assistant. It can be useful when providing information to support representatives for your service provider.



Figure 78 Options Dialog – About Page

The information displayed is as follows:

- BroadWorks Assistant Version
- BroadWorks Assistant Disclaimer

The About information is important in providing information for the purpose of technical support.

5 Services Dialog

The *Services* dialog allows you to configure the calling features provided by Assistant, such as Voice Messaging, CommPilot Express profiles, Call Forwarding, and Call Waiting. The left hand side of the dialog contains a tree view listing the configuration pages you can access. The configuration pages you select in the tree view are displayed on the right.

- Click OK to save all changes and close the dialog.
- Click Apply to save all changes without closing the dialog.
- Click Cancel to close the dialog without saving your changes.

NOTE: When the *Services* dialog is open, service buttons on the toolbar for the services that can be configured via the *Services* dialog do nothing when clicked. Once the *Services* dialog is closed, those buttons become operable again.

5.1 Incoming Calls

The *Incoming Calls* pages in the *Options* dialog configure the services that apply to calls that you receive.

5.1.1 Anonymous Call Rejection

The Anonymous Call Rejection service blocks all incoming calls from people who have restricted their phone numbers from being shown to their call recipients.

Incoming Calls	^	Anonymous Call Rejection
Anonymous Call Rejection		Anonymous Call Rejection
🛁 🐴 Call Forwarding No Answer		Anonymous Call Rejection 🔷 On 💿 Off
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy		
🔤 🔤 👌 Do Not Disturb		
- 🙈 CommPilot Express		
- 🏠 Available-In Office		
- 🏠 Available-Out of Office		
- 🏦 Busy		
🚽 🖓 Unavailable		
🦾 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing		
合 Outgoing Calls		
- 🔂 Automatic Callback		
- 😳 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		
🔚 Call Control		
Anywhere	-	Anonymous Call Bejection: Prevent a caller from reaching you when the
- 🌃 Call Waiting		caller has explicitly restricted his/her number.
Remote Office	~	
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 79 Services Dialog – Anonymous Call Rejection Page

5.1.2 Call Forwarding Always

The Call Forwarding Always service forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number.

To activate this service, click **Call Forwarding Always** on the toolbar. This highlights the button.

Jincoming Calls	^	Call Forwarding Always	
Anonymous Call Rejection		- Call Forwarding Always	
Call Forwarding Always		Cair i ofwarding Aiways	
🛁 🚔 Call Forwarding No Answer		Call Forwarding Always	🔾 On 💿 Off
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy			
		* Calls Forward to:	
- 🙈 CommPilot Express			
🖓 Available-In Office		Play Ring Reminder when	a call is forwarded
Available-Out of Office			
🚽 🔐 Busy	=		
🖓 Unavailable			
- 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery			
- 🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery			
🧾 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing			
合 Outgoing Calls			
- 🔗 Automatic Callback			
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking			
🔚 Call Control			
Anywhere	-	Call Forwarding Always: Automatically for	word all your incoming calls to a
		different phone number.	ward all your inconting calls to a
Remote Office	~		
		OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 80 Services Dialog - Call Forwarding Always Page

5.1.3 Call Forwarding No Answer

The Call Forwarding No Answer service forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number if you do not answer within a specified number of rings.

Incoming Calls	•	Call Forwarding No Answer	
Anonymous Call Rejection		Call Forwarding No Answer	
Call Forwarding No Answer		Call Forwarding No Answer	💿 On 🔿 Off
Call Forwarding Busy			
🚽 👸 Do Not Disturb		* Calls Forward to:	3012225569
CommPilot Express			
🚽 🖓 Available-In Office		Number of rings before forwarding:	
Available-Out of Office		Number of hings before forwarding.	3 💌
🔏 Busy			
🔏 Unavailable			
External Calling Line ID Delivery			
🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery			
🥥 Simultaneous Ringing			
Dutgoing Calls			
- 🔗 Automatic Callback			
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking			
III Call Control			
Anywhere		C-II Farmer Radio Marchaella Antonio Antonio Marchaella	(
Call Waiting		 Dail Forwarding No Answer: Automatically phone number when you do not answer yo 	rorward your calls to a different our phone after a certain number.
Remote Office	~	of rings	
		OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 81 Services Dialog - Call Forwarding No Answer Page

To activate this service, click **Call Forwarding No Answer** on the toolbar. This is highlighted when turned on.

Calls Forward to specifies the phone number to which Assistant redirects all calls forwarded using this service.

Numbers of rings before forwarding is the number of times your phone must ring before Assistant forwards an incoming call.

5.1.4 Call Forwarding Busy

The Call Forwarding Busy service forwards all incoming calls to a specified phone number when all available lines are in use.

To activate this service, click **Call Forwarding** on the toolbar. This button becomes depressed when on.

Call Forwarding Always	~	Call Forwarding Busy
Call Forwarding No Answer		
Call Forwarding Busy		Call Forwarding Busy
👸 Do Not Disturb		Call Forwarding Busy 🔿 On 💿 Off
CommPilot Express		
🚽 🖧 Available-In Office		* Calls Forward to:
- 🖧 Available-Out of Office		
🖓 Unavailable		
🛛 👰 External Calling Line ID Delivery		
Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		
🥏 🧭 Simultaneous Ringing		
合 Outgoing Calls		
- 😚 Automatic Callback		
🕞 😳 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		
🔚 Call Control		
Anywhere		
🔤 🎆 Call Waiting		
Remote Office		Call Forwarding Busy: Automatically forward your calls to a different phone
Messaging		number when your phone is busy.
Voice Messaging	~	
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 82 Services Dialog - Call Forwarding Busy Page

5.1.5 Do Not Disturb

The Do Not Disturb service forwards all incoming calls to your Voice Messaging service. If you do not have a Voice Messaging service configured, callers hear a busy tone.

Call Forwarding No Answer			
0 o # c - c - c	D. M. COLLER		
🔄 🙆 Call Forwarding Busy	Do Not Disturb		
<mark>2</mark> Do Not Disturb	Do Not Disturb	🔘 On	📀 Off
🖓 CommPilot Express			
🖓 Available-In Office	Play Ring Reminder when a call is for	varded	
Available-Out of Office			
🖧 Unavailable			
- 🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery			
🛛 🥑 Simultaneous Ringing 👘 📒			
合 Outgoing Calls			
- 😚 Automatic Callback			
- 😳 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking			
🔚 Call Control			
- 🔭 Call Waiting			
Remote Office	Do Not Disturb: Automatically forward your calls to	uour voice i	necessing
🗭 Messaging	service, if configured, otherwise the caller hears a	busy tone.	nessayiny
Voice Messaging 🗾 🗸	-		
	OK Cancel Apply		Help

Figure 83 Services Dialog – Do Not Disturb Page

To activate this service, click **Do Not Disturb** on the toolbar. This is highlighted when in service.

Play Ring Reminder when a call is forwarded determines whether Assistant notifies you each time the *Do Not Disturb* service forwards a call to your Voice Messaging service.

5.1.6 External Calling Line ID Delivery

The External Calling Line ID Delivery service allows you to view the calling line information for incoming calls from external phone numbers.

A Call Farmardine Almana				
Call Forwarding Always	-	External Calling Line ID Delivery		
Call Forwarding No Answer		External Calling Line ID Delivery		
Call Forwarding Busy				
🖉 Do Not Disturb		External Calling Line ID Delivery	💿 On	🔘 Off
CommPilot Express				
🖓 🖓 Available-In Office				
Available-Out of Office				
🖌 🔀 Busy				
🔏 Unavailable				
External Calling Line ID Delivery				
Internal Calling Line ID Delivery				
Simultaneous Ringing				
☐ Outgoing Calls				
Automatic Callback				
💮 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking				
III Call Control				
Anywhere				
🕂 Call Waiting				
💮 Remote Office		Estamet Celling Ling ID Delivery Devides Celling I	in a UD in Case	
Messaging		external caller.	ING ID INION	nation of an
Voice Messaging	~			
		OK Cancel Apply		Help

Figure 84 Services Dialog – External Calling Line ID Delivery Page

5.1.7 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery

The Internal Calling Line ID Delivery service allows you to view the calling line information for incoming calls from members of your group.



Figure 85 Services Dialog – Internal Calling Line ID Delivery Page

5.1.8 Simultaneous Ringing

The Simultaneous Ringing service rings multiple phone numbers for each incoming call. Any of the phone numbers specified for this service may be used to answer those calls.

🖓 Call Forwarding Always	^	Simultaneous Ringing	
🛁 🚔 Call Forwarding No Answer		- Simultaneous Ringing	
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy		Circulture and Dine	0 0m 0 0#
🛛 👸 Do Not Disturb		Simultaneous Filng	
🛛 🖓 CommPilot Express		How to handle incoming calls	
🖓 Available-In Office		O Dan't ring my Simultaneous Ring Nr.	unhara if l'un alreadu an a sall
🖓 Available-Out of Office			inders ir fin alleady on a call
📲 🔂 Busy		Ring all my Simultaneous Ring Num	bers for all incoming calls
🖓 Unavailable		Sim Bing Phone List:	
🔤 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery			
- 🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		Phone Number	Answer Confirmation
🥥 Simultaneous Ringing	≡	999999999	
合 Outgoing Calls		Enter a priorie number nere	
🔤 😚 Automatic Callback			
👘 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking			
E Call Control			
Anywhere			
🛛 \overline 👧 Call Waiting		Add Delete	
🖉 Remote Office		Circulture que Dinainer Alleure veu la listaria	have men used the to size in
Messaging		addition to your business phone when you re	eceive a call.
Voice Messaging	~		
		OK Cancel A	pply Help

Figure 86 Services Dialog – Simultaneous Ringing Page

To open this page, click **Simultaneous Ringing** on the toolbar. This becomes highlighted when activated.

When the *Don't ring my Simultaneous Ring Numbers if I'm already on a call* option is selected, the Simultaneous Ringing service is temporarily deactivated whenever you are engaged in an active call.

When the *Ring all my Simultaneous Ring Numbers for all incoming calls* option is selected, the Simultaneous Ringing service rings all numbers specified in the list that follows for each incoming call, regardless of whether you currently are engaged in an active call.

Sim Ring Phone List specifies the list of additional phone numbers that ring for each incoming call. The *Answer Confirmation* column allows you to specify, for each number separately, whether answer confirmation is required.

You can perform the following on the Sim Ring Phone List:

- View the Sim Ring phone list and the current status of Answer Confirmation option for each number in the List
- Add a new number to the Sim Ring Phone List and set its Answer Confirmation option "On" or "Off
- Modify an existing number in the Sim Ring Phone List by double-clicking on the number

 Set the Answer Confirmation option "On' or 'Off' for any phone number listed on the Sim Ring Phone List

NOTE: The Answer Confirmation capability is available only if this feature is activated.

- Delete an existing number from the Sim Ring Phone List.
- 1) To add a new phone number, click **Add**. A new item with the text, *Double click to add number here* prompt is inserted into the list control, allowing you to enter the required information.
- 2) To modify an existing phone number, double-click the number and then modify the information, as required.
- 3) To set the Answer Confirmation status of a phone number, "On" or "Off", check or uncheck the corresponding *Answer Confirmation* check box.
- 4) To delete a phone number, select the number and click the **Delete** button.

5.1.9 CommPilot Express

CommPilot Express allows you to manage your personal services using four configurable profiles. These profiles control your incoming calls automatically. Even when off-site, you can still manage your active profile on the web or over the phone.

With CommPilot Express, you can manage your calls based on your schedule. This allows you to work efficiently without unnecessary interruption.

NOTE: When configuring your profiles, you have to enter telephone numbers either in E.164 format or in national format – with or without the prefix, depending on whether the prefix is enabled for the Country Code in the Application Server. If you enter an extension, the system prefixes it with the default country code.

5.1.9.1 Available - In Office

The Available – In Office profile determines how incoming calls are handled when you are working at your desk.

- 🖧 Call Forwarding Always	^	Available-In Office
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy		Available - In Uffice
🔤 🖧 Do Not Disturb		Also ring this phone number:
🖓 CommPilot Express		
💦 Available-In Office		
Available-Out of Office		If Duran
- 🔏 Busy		
🖓 Unavailable		Have voice Messaging take the call
🛛 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery		Forward to this Phone Number:
📲 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		
🥥 Simultaneous Ringing		If No Answer:
合 Outgoing Calls		 Have Voice Messaging take the call
- 👧 Automatic Callback		
👘 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		Forward to this Phone Number:
🔚 Call Control		
Anywhere		
🛛 \overline 🚮 Call Waiting		
🛛 🙍 Remote Office		ConserDites English English to the effect of the international sector and
Messaging		working from your desk where your phone is located
Voice Messaging	~	
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 87 Services Dialog - CommPilot Express: Available - In Office Page

Also ring this phone number specifies an additional number for Assistant to ring for each incoming call. Calls may be answered from either this number or your main number.

If you select:

 If Busy: Have Voice Messaging take the call, Assistant forwards all incoming calls to your Voice Messaging service if you have no available open lines.

- If Busy: Forward to this Phone Number, then all incoming calls are forwarded to the specified phone number if you have no available lines.
- If No Answer: Have Voice Messaging take the call, Assistant forwards all incoming calls to your Voice Messaging service if you do not answer after a set number of rings.
- No Answer: Forward to this Phone Number, Assistant forwards all incoming calls to the specified phone number if you do not answer after a set number of rings.

5.1.9.2 Available – Out of Office

The Available – Out of Office profile determines how incoming calls are handled when you are not working at your desk, but are still able to receive calls.

Call Forwarding Always	Available-Out of Office
Call Forwarding No Answer	< Available - Out of Office
🔄 🐴 Call Forwarding Busy	
	When a call comes in:
CommPilot Express	
🚽 🖓 Available-In Office	I have Voice Messaging take the call
Available-Out of Office	Forward to this Phone Number
A Unavailable	
	Also empilizes where a call correction at:
External Calling Line ID Delivery	Also emainine when a call comes in ac
Internal Calling Line ID Delivery	Email Address:
- 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing	
合 Outgoing Calls	
- 😚 Automatic Callback	
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking	
E Call Control	
Anywhere	
🕂 Call Waiting	
Bemote Office	
Messaging	CommPilot Express - Available : Out of office profile is used when you are
Voice Messading	working away from your desk for an extended period of time.
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 88 Services Dialog - CommPilot Express: Available - Out of Office

If you select:

- Have Voice Messaging take the call, all incoming calls are forwarded to your Voice Messaging service.
- Forward to this Phone Number, Assistant forwards all incoming calls to a specified number.

Also e-mail me when a call comes in at determines whether Assistant also sends an email notification to the address you specify below it each time you receive an incoming call.

The *E-mail address* specifies the e-mail address Assistant notifies when you receive an incoming call.

5.1.9.3 Busy

The Busy profile determines how incoming calls are handled when you are busy.

🔤 🖓 Call Forwarding Always	^	Busy
🛁 🐴 Call Forwarding No Answer		
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy	_	Busy Condictions Manager and All free Manager
🚽 👌 Do Not Disturb		Phone Numbers
CommPilot Express		
🚽 🖓 Available-In Office		
Available-Out of Office		
🖓 Unavailable		
- 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery		Solidate will be forwarded to a
- 👰 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		Which will be forwarded to :
🦲 Simultaneous Ringing	≡	Alex Elevel and a State day where a Visite Manager is an effective
合 Outgoing Calls		Also E-mail me a notification when a voice message is received to :
- 😚 Automatic Callback		
🔤 😳 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		
🔚 Call Control		
Remote Office		CommPilat European Rusu : Rusu profile is used when you are temporarily
🗭 Messaging		unavailable to take calls, when you are in a meeting for instance.
Voice Messaging	~	
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 89 Services Dialog - CommPilot Express: Busy Page

- Send all calls to Voice Messaging except calls from these Phone Numbers forwards all incoming calls to your Voice Messaging service, when selected. You can configure up to three numbers to be excluded from this service in the blank fields provided. Calls to these numbers are instead forwarded to the phone number you specify below it.
- Which will be forwarded to determines the phone number to which Assistant forwards the excluded callers specified above.
- Also E-mail me a notification when a Voice Message is received should be selected to receive an e-mail notification each time you receive a Voice Mail message.

5.1.9.4 Unavailable

The Unavailable profile determines how incoming calls are handled when you are not free to take calls, such as during outside business hours or when on holidays.

Call Forwarding Always	Unavailable
Call Forwarding No Answer	
🛛 🐴 Call Forwarding Busy	
	Phone Numbers
- 🔏 CommPilot Express	
Available-In Office	
Available-Out of Office	
Busy	
🕹 🖓 Unavailable	
- 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery	Which will be forwarded to :
- 🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery	
- 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing	Have Voice Messaging take the call using :
合 Outgoing Calls	No answer Greeting
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking	
🔚 Call Control	
Anywhere	
Remote Office	CommPilot Unavailable : Unavailable profile is used outside of business
Messaging	hours, or when you are on vacation or holiday.
🖳 🔤 Voice Messaging 🛛 💽	
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 90 Services Dialog - CommPilot Express: Unavailable Page

If you select:

- Send all calls to Voice Messaging except calls from these Phone Numbers, all incoming calls are forwarded to your Voice Messaging service. You can configure up to three numbers to be excluded from this service in the blank fields provided. Calls to these numbers are instead forwarded to the phone number you specify. To determine which phone number Assistant forwards the excluded callers to, select Which will be forwarded to.
- No answer Greeting, its standard "no answer" greeting message plays to incoming calls.
- Unavailable Greeting, your Voice Messaging service is enabled to play its standard "unavailable" greeting message to incoming calls.

5.2 Outgoing Calls

The *Outgoing Calls* pages in the *Options* dialog configure the services that apply to calls that you initiate.

5.2.1 Automatic Callback

The Automatic Callback service allows you to have Assistant monitor a busy party in your group and to automatically establish a call on your behalf when the busy party becomes available.



Figure 91 Services Dialog – Automatic Callback

5.2.2 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking

The Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking service prevents other parties from seeing your phone number or calling line information when engaged in calls with you.

Call Forwarding Always	^	Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking
Call Forwarding No Answer		Calling Line ID Deliveru Blocking
Call Forwarding Busy		County End to beingly blocking
👸 Do Not Disturb		Block Outgoing Calling Line ID 🛛 🔷 On 💿 Off
- A CommPilot Express		
🚽 🧞 Available-In Office		
Available-Out of Office		
- 🙀 Busy		
🖉 Unavailable		
External Calling Line ID Delivery		
- 🛐 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		
🧾 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing		
合 Outgoing Calls		
🔤 🚮 Automatic Callback		
😥 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		
E Call Control		
Anywhere		
🕂 Call Waiting		
Bemote Office		
Messaging		uailing Line U Delivery Blocking: Block your number from being shown when calling other numbers. Members of your group can still see your
Voice Messaging	~	number when they are called.
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 92 Services Dialog - Outgoing Calls: Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking

5.3 Call Control

The *Call Control* pages in the *Options* dialog allow you to configure your Call Control services.

5.3.1 Anywhere

The BroadWorks Anywhere service allows you to define one or more network locations (also referred as BroadWorks Anywhere locations) that can be used as extensions to your profile.

Call Forwarding Always	~	Anumhere
Call Forwarding Amays Call Forwarding No Answer Call Forwarding Busy Const Disturb CommPilot Express		Anywhere Anywhere Alert all locations for Click-to-Dial calls View Available Portal List Anywhere Locations List
Available-In Dirice Available-Out of Office Busy Unavailable External Calling Line ID Delivery Simultaneous Ringing Outgoing Calls Outgoing Calls Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking Call Control Anywhere Call Waiting Remote Office Messaging	III	Enable Phone Number Description Image: Construction in the second se
Voice Messaging	~	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 93 Services Dialog - Call Control: BroadWorks Anywhere

Alert all locations for Click-to-Dial calls check box specifies whether BroadWorks Anywhere locations should be alerted for the Click-to-Dial service.

Anywhere Locations List allows you to add, delete, or modify Anywhere Location phone numbers.

Advanced Options per Location contains a list of advanced options that can be enabled or disabled separately for each Anywhere Location:

- Enable Diversion Inhibitor
- Require Answer Confirmation
- Use BroadWorks-based Call Control Services

Outbound Alternate Number/SIP URI text box allows you to add an alternate number or SIP URI.

View Available Portal List link displays the following page, which lists BroadWorks Anywhere portals available to you.

- 🖧 Call Forwarding Always	^	Anywh	iere			
🛁 👌 Call Forwarding No Answer		- Anus	ihere			
Call Forwarding Busy						
		Anj	where Portal	List ———		
			Portal Name	Phone Number	Extension	Language
Available-In Office			anywhere1	+111111114	1114	English
Available-Out of Office			•			
Busy		_				
Unavailable		-				
External Calling Line ID Delivery						
Internal Calling Line ID Delivery						
Simultaneous Ringing		-				
Outgoing Calls						
Automatic Callback						
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking						
Call Control						
Anywhere						
Call Waiting						
Remote Office						
Messaging		Anywh	ere: Allows yo	u to to configure P	hone Numbe	r along with multiple
Voice Messaging	×	selectiv	/e criteria for e	each phone numbe	er.	
			ок	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 94 BroadWorks Anywhere Available Portals List

The page is read only.

To return to the previous page, click **OK**.

5.3.2 Remote Office

The Remote Office service allows you to substitute a different phone number for your office phone number. You can open this page by clicking Remote Office on the toolbar. The button is highlighted when turned on.

Remote Office Number specifies the alternate phone number to substitute for your office number.

& Call Forwarding Always		Damaka Office		
	-	Remote Uffice		
Call Forwarding No Answer		Remote Office		
Call Forwarding Busy				
Do Not Disturb		Remote Office Of	n	💿 Off
CommPilot Express		Remote Office Number:		
- 🏠 Available-In Office				
Available-Out of Office				
- Rusy				
Unavailable				
External Calling Line ID Delivery				
- 🙀 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery				
🥥 Simultaneous Ringing				
Outgoing Calls				
🔤 😚 Automatic Callback				
🕞 🛺 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking				
E Call Control				
Anywhere				
👷 Call Waiting				
Bemote Office				
		Remote Office: Allows you to use your home phone, your	cell p	phone or
		even a hotel phone as your business phone.		
Voice messaging	×			
				Help
			_	noip

Figure 95 Services Dialog - Call Control: Remote Office

5.3.3 Call Waiting

The Call Waiting service allows you to answer incoming calls while engaged in another active call.

Call Forwarding Always	^	Call Waiting		
Call Forwarding No Answer		< Call Waiting		
Call Forwarding Busy		Carwaking		
- 👸 Do Not Disturb		Call Waiting	💿 On	🔘 Off
CommPilot Express				
- 🏠 Available-In Office				
📲 🔐 Busy				
🖓 Unavailable				
🛛 🙀 External Calling Line ID Delivery				
Internal Calling Line ID Delivery				
🥥 Simultaneous Ringing				
🛆 Outgoing Calls				
- 🔂 Automatic Callback				
🛛 💮 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking				
E Call Control				
Anywhere				
🕂 \overline 🧟 Call Waiting				
🖉 Remote Office		C-B-V-X-X-and Annual a set of the share to see the	11	
Messaging		Laii waiting: Answer a call while already on another	call.	
Voice Messaging	~			
			_	
		OK Cancel Apply		Help

Figure 96 Services Dialog - Call Control: Call Waiting

5.4 Messaging

The *Messaging* pages in the *Options* dialog allow you to configure your Voice Messaging settings.

5.4.1 Voice Messaging

The Voice Management page specifies how the system handles your voice messages.

	^	Voice Messaging
- 🐴 Call Forwarding No Answer		Voice Messaging
🖓 Call Forwarding Busy	-	
👸 Do Not Disturb		
CommPilot Express		Send All calls to Voice Mail
- 🏠 Available-In Office		Send Busy calls to Voice Mail
- 🏠 Available-Out of Office		✓ Send Unanswered calls to Voice Mail
📲 Busy		When a voice message arrives
🖓 Unavailable		Use unified messaging
🛐 External Calling Line ID Delivery		Use Phone Message Waiting Indicator
🛐 Internal Calling Line ID Delivery		Forward it to this e-mail address
- 🥝 Simultaneous Ringing		
合 Outgoing Calls		
		Natifu ma hu a natil of the year
🔤 😳 Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking		voice message at this address
🔚 Call Control		Email a carbon copy of the voice
		message to :
		I ranster on 'U' to Phone
Remote Office		Vieine Messaging: Alleure you to epocify how to bandle your unice
🗭 Messaging		messages
Voice Messaging	~	
		OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 97 Services Dialog – Messaging: Voice Messaging

You can select how you want the calls to be treated by selecting from the following: Send All Calls to Voice Mail, Send Busy Calls to Voice Mail, and Send Unanswered Calls to Voice Mail. Changes made via the web portal are not reflected in real time for Assistant–Enterprise. You must log in again to see the new values.

When the *Use unified messaging* option is selected, you can access your voice messages via e-mail and phone. Messages are sent as mail attachments to the e-mail address configured for your account.

"Use Phone Message Waiting Indicator" determines whether your phone provides an alternate dial tone and a visual indicator on some phone models to indicate that you have a message waiting.

If the *"Forward it to this e-mail address"* option is selected you will be able to access your voice messages only by e-mail. Messages are sent as mail attachments to the specified e-mail address, and are not available for retrieval by phone.

"Notify me by e-mail of the new voice message at this address" determines whether the system sends a notification e-mail to the specified address each time it records a voice mail. This notification will contain the date and time the voice message was recorded, but does not contain the content of the voice message itself as an attachment.

6 Troubleshooting

This section contains information that may aid those having difficulty using Assistant. If your problem is not listed in the index, contact your service provider for assistance.

6.1 Using Assistant with Microsoft Windows Service Pack 2 (SP2)

When you open the Group Directory or Personal Directory from the toolbar, Internet Explorer or Firefox may display the following warning message:



Figure 98 Internet Explorer Warning

This warning is triggered by the JavaScript used by Assistant to sort directory listings.

The following instructions override the warning and open the directory:

1) Click the message.

The notification turns blue and displays a pop-up menu.

2) Select Allow Blocked Content from the pop-upmenu.

Dial Number 💽 📞 💷 🛋 🕅 🌞 📞 Call Lines 💿	
🚖 🚸 <i>E</i> BroadWorks Assistant Enterprise - Personal Directory	
🛞 To help protect your security, Internet Explorer has restricted this webpage from running scripts or Active	X controls that could access your computer. Click here for options
A Personal Directory	Allow Blocked Content What's the Risk?
Name / Email	More information Number

Figure 99 Internet Explorer Warning

Another security warning appears.

3) Click Yes.

Dial Number 🛛 🖌 💵 (🗐 💓 🏪 🌜 Call Lines 🛛 🗹	
🚖 🎄 🌈 BroadWorks Assis	ant Enterprise - Personal Directory	
🛞 To help protect your security, I	nternet Explorer has restricted this webpage from running script	ts or ActiveX controls that could access your computer. Click here for options
Per:	sonal Directory	
Name / Email	Security Warning	Number
	Allowing active content such as script and Active but active content might also harm your compute Are you sure you want to let this file run active of	X controls can be useful, ar.

Figure 100 Internet Explorer Security Warning

6.2 Assistant Not Visible in Outlook

If the Assistant toolbar is not visible in Outlook, follow these steps. If the problem is not solved, contact your service provider.

To confirm that Assistant–Enterprise is installed:

- 1) Open Internet Explorer.
- 2) Click the Options icon in the Assistanttoolbar.
- 3) Click General in the tree view on the left of the Options dialog.
- Verify that the "version" area of the page lists *BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise*. If it lists only *BroadWorks Assistant*, contact your service provider to upgrade to Assistant–Enterprise. If it lists *BroadWorks Assistant–Enterprise* follow the next step.

Make the Assistant–Enterprise Toolbar visible:

1) Right-click an empty area of the toolbar region in Outlook.

A menu appears listing all the toolbars currently registered.

2) Make sure that the Assistant entries (*Telephony Toolbar Call Control* and *Telephony Toolbar Services*) are checked, as shown in *Figure 101 Outlook Toolbar Options*.





If the Assistant entries are not listed, continue with the next step.

6.3 Register Assistant within Outlook

1) Click on Help or About Microsoft Office Outlook.



Figure 102 Help Dialog, Disabled Items

2) In the dialog box select *Disabled Items*. If the *Telephony Toolbar* is visible on the list, click **Enable** and restart Outlook.

The items listed below were disabled because they prevented Outlook from functioning correctly. Please note that you may have to restart Outlook for these changes to take place.					
Select the ones you wish to re-enable.					
There are no disabled items.	~				
	~				
Enable					

Figure 103 Disabled Items Dialog

6.4 I Have Not Been Licensed to Use Assistant

This error indicates that your service provider has not added the Assistant Client License to your list of services.

Contact your service provider to activate Assistant for your account.

⚠	You have not been licensed to use BroadWorks Assistant - Enterprise. Please contact your service provider.					
	OK					

Figure 104 License Notification

6.5 Assistant Not Visible in Internet Explorer

If the Assistant toolbar is not visible in Microsoft Internet Explorer, follow these steps:

1) Right-click an empty area of the toolbar region in Explorer.

A menu appears listing all the toolbars currently registered.

2) Make sure that the Assistant entries (*Telephony Toolbar Call Control, Telephony Toolbar Services* for Assistant–Enterprise) are checked, shown in *Figure 105 Internet Explorer Toolbar Options*.



Figure 105 Internet Explorer Toolbar Options

If your problem is still not solved, contact your service provider.

7 Known Issues

This section specifies the known issues of Assistant-Enterprise.

7.1 Outlook 2007 Limitation

When the user performs a search, or opens a directory (such as the group directory) using the Toolbar in Outlook 2007, Outlook 2007 creates multiple "Telephony Toolbar" listings under "My Contacts". Only one of the entries is correct. Clicking on a duplicate entry displays an error message that says "The Operation Failed" and Outlook 2007 removes the entry. This is a side effect of Outlook 2007 shortcut folders and the error message can be ignored."

8 Appendix A – Interface for Right-to-Left Languages

If your Assistant–Enterprise has been configured by your administrator for a right-to-left (RTL) language, such as Hebrew or Arabic, and you selected a right-to-left language, your Assistant–Enterprise user interface changes to the right-to-left presentation.

This appendix provides an overview of the Assistant–Enterprise user interface for RTL languages. It uses Hebrew to illustrate the interface.

8.1 RTL Toolbar Layout

The toolbar presentation changes slightly depending whether you use Assistant– Enterprise with Microsoft Internet Explorer, Outlook, or Mozilla Firefox. The following subsections present an example of each.

8.1.1 RTL Toolbar in Internet Explorer

The Assistant–Enterprise toolbar for RTL languages in Internet Explorer is a mirror image of the English version of the toolbar. The text displayed by Assistant, such as labels and notes and the text entered by the user, flows from right to left and is right-aligned.

🔹 🖬 סרגל כלים לארגון	חיפוש 🦓 🔏 חיפוש	å 🔽	בכל מקום 🔹 👲 🚫 💷	🗿 שירותים 👔	
		~	בהמתנה] 5146974010 [בהמתנה]	a 📗 🥒 💌	חיוג מספר

Figure 106 Assistant–Enterprise for an RTL Language in Internet Explorer

8.1.2 RTL Toolbar in Firefox

The layout of the Assistant–Enterprise toolbar for RTL languages in Firefox is similar to that in Internet Explorer with one exception. Firefox does not allow right justification of text in drop-down lists, such as Call Lines, Dial, or Search, therefore the text in those lists in left-justified.

ביS 🗹 🚺 מאקרפרןד קE בי	дчи 👗	â 🗉	🔕 🙆 i	S 🔽 🖸	םמקN-ורםאPםצצ	0	2	מט'יקרקא*		קרהןבקד5	Ø	0
				4504615	[מבםצןמע] 5009	9			2	🔽 צנקר NU ןשך		

Figure 107 Assistant–Enterprise for an RTL Language in Firefox

8.1.3 RTL Toolbar in Outlook

The layout of the Assistant–Enterprise toolbar for right-to-left languages in Outlook is different from those for the internet browsers, as Outlook does not allow the toolbar to display right to left. The layout of the toolbar (that is, the placement of buttons and dialog boxes on the toolbar) is left to right as in the English version of the toolbar; however the text in dialog boxes is displayed from right to left and the user can enter text in the right-to-left direction.

שירותים 🏹 🎲 🔘	📔 מווט - ללא 🛛 🥑 👱 🔻 בנל מקום	- 🛆 🤷 🕮 🐴 🔏 I	א סרגל כלים לארגון 🔻 חיפוש 🔫
חיוג לאיש קשר 👻	חיוג מספר 🗸 🖬 🛃 🖊 🚆	🕐 5146974010 [יוצאות] 🔹 🛫	

Figure 108 Assistant–Enterprise for an RTL Language in Outlook

8.2 RTL Options Dialog

The *Options* dialog pages and their controls are presented from right-to-left and rightaligned for right-to-left language locales. Text fields are also right-aligned and the user can enter information from right to left.

כללי חשברן 🎤 מידע על הכניסה למערכת התחברות 👹 כללי חיוג 🌆 שם משתמש שילוב עם תוכנת הדואר 🙆 סיסמא אנשי קשר 💽 שילוב עם בסיס נתוני א 📻 אפשרויות הכניסה למערכת מדריך טלפונים 📻 שמור שם משתמש 🗹 הקפצת מסך אינטרנט 🔚 עידכונים 🔕 שמור סיסמא 🔽 אודות 🔞 שינרי סיסמה < > עזרה החל בטל אישור

Figure 109 shows and example of an Options dialog page for an RTL language.

Figure 109 Options Dialog – Account Page for an RTL Language

8.3 RTL Call History Page

Call History, Group Directory, Personal Directory, search results, and other HTML pages are mirror images of their English version equivalents. The information is presented from right to left and the text is right-aligned. *Figure 110* shows a Call History page for Hebrew.
INTERPRISE		טוריה	הסב היס	
ברור				
תאריך / שעה	on	שם	הסב סוג	
10:25:58 ,2009-05-22	4010	בלוף	4	
17:28:44 ,2009-05-09	4010	גלוף	4	
17:28:42 ,2009-05-09	4010	בלוף	4	
17:17:20 ,2009-05-04	4010	לא זמין		
17:14:40 ,2009-05-04	4010	לא זמין		
12:14:06 ,2009-04-29	4010	בלוף		
12:12:26 ,2009-04-29	4010	בלוף		
10:25:58 ,2009-05-22	4010	בלוף	4	
17:28:44 ,2009-05-09	4010	בלוף	4	
17:28:42 ,2009-05-09	4010	בלוף	4	
17:17:20 ,2009-05-04	4010	לא זמין		
17:14:40 ,2009-05-04	4010	לא זמין		
12:14:06 ,2009-04-29	4010	גלוף		
12:12:26 ,2009-04-29	4010	בלוף		

Figure 110 Call History Page for an RTL Language

8.4 RTL Warnings and Error Messages

The warning and error message boxes present information from right to left and the text is right-aligned as illustrated in *Figure 111*.



Figure 111 Warning Message Box for an RTL Language